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Proposition 39 – 2.0 Pre-Apprenticeship Support, Training and Placement – 
Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ) 

Week of November 16, 2015 
Questions and Answers: 
 

1) When can the proposed project start?  The RFA says as early as Jan 1, but what is the latest date that 
it could start? 
A: Projects may begin work on April 1, 2016, or upon full execution of contracts. Under no 
circumstances shall grant services begin until the grantee receives a fully executed copy of the 
contract from EDD. (See page 7 of the RFA) 

 
2) Is the Training Implementation grant for 12 or 18 months?  Is there a ramp-up period built in, or can 

we start training in Month 1 of the grant? 
A: The Training Implementation Grant is for a period of up to 18 months.  Grantees may propose a 
project cycles or between 12-18 months in the narrative, participant plan, and workplan.  Grant 
activities (including training) may begin as early as April 1, 2016, or when contracts are fully 
executed. (e.g. If contracts are completed after April 1, the start date will be the date the contract is 
executed.) (See page 7 of the RFA)  

 
3) What is the minimum grant amount for the Training Implementation grant? 

A: $300,000 (See page 7 of the RFA) 
 

4) Can we combine the Prop 39 grant with a Workforce Accelerator Fund grant to support the same 
training class? 
A:  Grant funds awarded under this RFA are for grant activities identified in each program element 
only and are intended to supplement, not supplant existing programs. (See page 14 of the RFA) 

 
5) Can we use the Prop 39 grant to fund a solar installer training class or does it have to be a pre-

apprenticeship class? 
A: The class must be based on the national certified Multi-Craft Core Curriculum (MC3).  (See page 
4 of the RFA). Training Implementation grantees shall be required to gain approval from the 
Building Construction Trades Department of the AFL‐CIO through building trades councils or Joint 
Apprenticeship Training Committees to provide the MC3 to participants. (See page 10 of the RFA) 

 
6) There are 3 elements listed in the RFA.  What if our proposed project has more than one element? 

Do we need to submit separate applications for each element, or can we propose a project that 
includes some training implementation and some activities that would fall under technical assistance 
or development as part of the Training Implementation grant? 
A:  Applicants wishing to apply for more than one program element must submit a separate 
application for each program element (See page 5 of the RFA).  

 
7) For Training Implementation, what outcomes are you hoping to see? 

A: Training Implementation applicants are required to develop performance targets/goals related to 
the specific focus of these grants, which include: (See page 11 of the RFA) 

• Attainment of industry‐valued credentials (successful completion of MC3 curriculum) 
• Placement in state‐certified apprenticeship 
• Placement in continuing education 
• Placement in construction/energy efficiency employment 
• Retention in employment/state‐certified apprenticeship 
• Income increase 
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Training Implementation applicants must proposed performance targets/goals in Form 4: 
Participant Plan. 
 

8) Is placement into training/education an acceptable outcome, or are you specifically looking for 
placement into employment or union apprenticeships? 
A: See Question #7 answer. 

 
9) Will all Prop 39 training participants have to be enrolled in WIOA?   

A: No. The Clean Energy Job Creation fund established by the voter-approved Proposition 39 - The 
California Clean Energy Jobs Act is state-funded and is not required to follow federally mandated 
WIOA guidelines. However, Training Implementation applicants are encouraged to follow WIOA 
guidelines regarding follow-up procedures which can be located at the following link: 
https://www.congress.gov/bill/113th-congress/house-bill/803/text. 
 

10) Will grantees be required to use CalJOBS as the client tracking database? 
A: Yes. All Training Implementation grantees are required to use CalJOBS for participant tracking. 
If the grantee is a Local Board and has received prior authorization from EDD to use authorized 
third party client data‐tracking software, the grantee is responsible for ensuring that all participant 
and outcome data are uploaded to, and available for, extraction from the CalJOBSSM labor 
exchange system. (See page 11 of the RFA) 

 
11) Is there a minimum/maximum cost per participant you are looking for under the Training 

Implementation element? 
A:  No. There is no minimum/maximum cost per participant; however, grant funds under this RFA 
must comply with all requirements of the California Public Resources Code (PRC) §262320(c)(1-5) 
(Page 7 of the RFA).  Please also refer to the Appendix 4 – Allowable Expenditures Guidance for 
reference.  

 
12) Can an entity (such as the local WIB or Building Trades Council) be part of more than one proposal? 

A:  Yes.  Organizations may partner with multiple applicants in separate proposals. However, the 
State Board encourages regional and statewide partnerships for this RFA. 

 
 

Week of November 23, 2015 
Questions and Answers: 
 

13) Multi‐Craft Core Curriculum link on page 10 does not work. 
A:  Please use this link 
http://www.efficiencycities.org/wp-content/uploads/062309/BCTD%20TriFold_v6.pdf  
In addition, the State Board included the Building Trade MC3 FAQs on our initiative website for 
reference. 
 

14) Will projects previously funded through Prop 39 automatically get rolled over and re-funded, or will 
they go through a competitive application process again?  If they must re-apply, should we assume 
that this is a separate process from the current RFP? 
A:   The State Board reserves the right to adjust the total number and amount of each grant award 
based upon the availability of funds. The State Board also reserves the right to make additional 
awards by June 30, 2016 to applications not initially funded through this RFA, if additional funding 
becomes available (Page 7 of the RFA). 

https://www.congress.gov/bill/113th-congress/house-bill/803/text
http://www.efficiencycities.org/wp-content/uploads/062309/BCTD%20TriFold_v6.pdf
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15) What is the latest date that training has to be wrapped up?  If the training implementation grant is for 
18 months, and begins April 1, 2015, then does training need to be complete by the end of October 
2016?  Can we push the end of the grant period to Nov/Dec 2016? 
A:   Applicants must plan their grant activities within the identified program element duration (Page 
7 of the RFA).  Grantees shall submit a closeout report after sixty days from the end of the grant 
period (Page 11 of the RFA). 

 
16) What are the expectations around placement/retention services for individuals trained toward the end 

of the grant? 
A:   Training Implementation applicants are required to develop their own performance 
targets/goals for placement and retention indicated in Q#7 answer.. 

 
17) Does a subcontracted business entity need to be registered with CA Secretary of State’s Office for 

this grant? 
A:   Yes. Subcontracted business entity must be registered with CA Secretary of State’s Office and 
have an active status in order to received Prop 39 funding. For more information, visit 
http://kepler.sos.ca.gov. Secretary of State (SOS) contact info page: http://www.sos.ca.gov/business-
programs/business-entities/contact 
 
 

Week of November 30, 2015  
 

18) Visit CWDB Prop 39 Initiative page (http://cwdb.ca.gov/Initiatives.htm) for the following: 
• Secretary of State (SOS) contact info page: http://www.sos.ca.gov/business-

programs/business-entities/contact  
• Bidder Declaration Form 
• MC3 Flow Chart 

 
19) Can a proposal for the Development grant be connected to the Training Implementation grant? 

A:  Yes. However, each proposal requires separate application.  
 

20) If the business (e.g. LP, LLC, Corp. and Inc.) received a letter from the Secretary of State (SOS) 
expressing the agency is in “good standing”, can that be submitted to satisfy the SOS Business 
Search? 
A:   Yes, a recent letter from the SOS office stating a business is in good standing will satisfy the 
requirement.  
 

21) Does an agency need a Federally Approved Indirect Rate? 
A:   No.  
 

22) Is there a definition for "leveraged funds" so that we can make sure we are applying correct type of 
funds to that column? 
A:   Leveraged funds are any additional dollars used by staff/partners and/or participants for the 
purpose of fulfilling the project. 
 

23) Will the amount leveraged affect the requested amount in the budget form of the application? 
A:   No. The amount leveraged will not affect the amount requested by the applicant.  
 
 
 
 

http://kepler.sos.ca.gov/
http://www.sos.ca.gov/business-programs/business-entities/contact
http://www.sos.ca.gov/business-programs/business-entities/contact
http://www.sos.ca.gov/business-programs/business-entities/contact
http://www.sos.ca.gov/business-programs/business-entities/contact
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24) Are you making any distinction between leveraged and match funds? Such as for reporting? 
A:   There is no distinction between leveraged and in-kind or cash match funds; however, applicants 
are required to identify if the funds are in-kind or cash match and the source of the funds (federal, 
nonfederal, name of partner that is contributing, etc.) 
 

25) Can leveraged funds be in-kind contributions? 
A:   Yes, leveraged funds may be in-kind contributions. 
 

26) How do we decide what is leverage and what is in-kind match in budget? 
A:   In-kind match is generally defined by staff time, materials, or facility costs paid for by leveraged 
funds. Cash match is generally defined by a monetary contribution from a project partner or other 
funder. 
 

27) Regarding “earn and learn” can this be incentive payments for classroom time or must it be an hourly 
wage for work experience? What is expected for earn and learn? 
A:   “Earn and Learn” is a general term being used at the State to refer to classroom and workplace 
training that allows participants to earn income while in training. Monetary incentives can be 
applied to time in the classroom and should be outlined in the applicant’s work plan and budget. 
 

28) Will existing grantees be refunded through a different pot of money? 
A: No. Prop 39 1.0 Technical Assistance and Training Implementation grantees will be assessed to 
determine potential extensions. Prop 39 1.0 Development grantees must apply for the Training 
Implementation grant via this RFA in order to receive finding. 
 

29) Are previous grantees potentially part of the 4 anticipated grantees in implementation? 
A:   Yes.  
 

30) Can you explain CalJOBS requirements for an awardee who is a Trades Council? 
A:   Training Implementation grantees are required to use CalJOBS to track participant and project 
performance data to ensure completion of services throughout the project. CalJOBS will not be used 
to track expenditures; funds will be tracked via cash invoices. CalJOBS codes based on the project 
services to participants will be provided to Training Implementation grantees at a later date. 
 

31) Are those codes provided in CalJOBS exempt from WIOA eligibility requirements? 
A:   CalJOBS codes are not exempt from WIOA eligibility requirements. However, Prop 39 grant 
funds are not WIOA finds, and therefore participants do not need to meet WIOA participant 
eligibility requirements. Eligibility requirements for disadvantaged and disconnected populations 
can be unique to the project; however, the definitions must be provided with the first quarter report 
to the State Board and contain in each participants case file.  
 

32) Will fiscal reporting take place in CalJOBS? 
A:   No. Fiscal expenditures will not be tracked in CalJOBS. Fiscal reports will be tracked via 
monthly invoices. See Q#30 answer. 
 

33) I represent a 100 African American Churches that need full retrofits. I am wondering if there will be 
collaboration event to connect with possible partners to have our buildings serviced through these 
grants. 
A:   Unfortunately, this grant does not fund retrofitting. The purpose of this grant is to fund projects 
that fill critical workforce skills gaps by creating opportunities for disadvantaged California job 
seekers to earn industry‐valued credentials and enter into pre-apprenticeship, leading to 
apprenticeship or direct employment, in the energy efficiency or construction sectors. 
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Week of December 7, 2015  
 

34) Can you explain who needs to be included in the partnership agreement and what contents you are 
looking for? Is it just the building trades or does it needs to be signed by all partners in the grant? 
A:  For this RFA, formal partnership agreements are not required with all project partners, aside 
from the local building trades. In order to be certified to teach the MC3, training providers must 
have an established partnership with a local building trades council. This agreement may be in the 
form of an MOU, letter of commitment, or similar document. 
 

35) Are Training Implementation applicants required to achieve all  propose program performance 
targets/goals list on Slide 11, specifically the 3 listed below:  

• Placement in State-Certified Apprenticeship 
• Placement in Continuing Education 
• Placement in Construction/Energy Efficiency Employment 

A:  No. It is anticipated that the majority of participants will be placed in state-certified 
apprenticeship, however, the State Board recognizes that some participants will be placed in 
continuing education, construction/energy efficiency employment, and/or placed in other industry 
employment.  Training Implementation applicants should propose program performance 
target/goals identified on Slide 11 of the Application Workshop PowerPoint (also on Page 11 on the 
RFA) by completing Form 4: Participant Plan.  
 

36) Our high demand construction/energy efficiency occupation is currently PV installation.  Our focus 
has always been continuing education and placement in employment but not necessarily union 
employment although a union apprenticeship is an amazing opportunity for our customers, however 
many are not ready for the rigors of an apprenticeship and engaging the union may pose a barrier for 
our project. 
A:  The purpose of this initiative is to fund projects that fill critical workforce skills gaps by creating 
opportunities for disadvantaged California job seekers to earn industry‐valued credentials and enter 
into pre-apprenticeship (MC3 training), leading to apprenticeship or direct employment in the 
energy efficiency or construction sectors (see Q 35).  However, all projects must be (or plan to 
become) certified to teach the MC3 is through an established partnership with your local building 
trades council and to submit a partnership agreement with the application.  This agreement may be 
in the form of an MOU, letter of commitment, or similar document. 
 

37) Can Development grants be submitted at anytime prior to May 2? Do they receive consideration, 
scoring and potential award as they are received, or are they all scored and awarded after the May 
2nd deadline? I am asking because the RFP states that they have rolling start dates. How much in 
advance of submission should we establish our start date in the proposal? 
A:  Applicants may apply for the Development grant any time prior to the May 2nd deadline.  The 
State Board will review the Development applications when received.  The State Board recommends 
planning that the proposed activities start 40-60 days after the application submission.   
 


